
1 
 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, April 16, 2019  

 
Chairman Johansen called the April 16, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (April 5, 2019), and published in a 
legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of April 8, 2019. 
In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on April 5, 2019 copies of such notice of 
meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance with Article 3, 
Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
 
The County Clerk stated that the Amended Agenda was posted in the Government Center, 
posted on the County website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the 
Supervisors and media via email on April 10, 2019.  
 
The County Board received opinion via email from Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice and the amended agendas, posted and published as described by the 
Clerk satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Fourteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused was 
Supervisor Masters.   
 
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a time of reflection. None was offered. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Amended Agenda as 
published. Motion (Bonneprise/Larsen) to adopt the Amended Agenda. Chairman Johansen 
declared Agenda item F, Resolution No. 18‐19: Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Plan for 
Library Service 2019‐2024 will be moved before item14.a. on the agenda. Chairman Johansen 



2 
 

called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt the Amended Agenda as published. Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Jepsen/O’Connell) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda:  Minutes from March 19, 2019 County 
Board session adopted as published, and Resolution No. 19‐19: Resolution to Approve Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment for the Town of St Croix Falls adopted. 
 
Time was given for public comment. No public comment was received by County Board. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Honorable Jeffery Anderson, Polk County Circuit Court Judge 
from Branch Two to present an update on the judicial system to the County Board. The County 
Board received statistics presented by Judge Anderson regarding total cases filed and various 
caseload handled by the Polk County court branches. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon the Polk County Polk County Library Planning Services 
Committee to present information to the County Board regarding the Polk County Plan of 
Library Service for 2019 to 2024. The County Board received a PowerPoint presentation 
regarding the Plan of Library Service from John Thompson and Library Planning Services 
Committee representatives. 
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report. The County Board received 
information and updates regarding meetings attended and upcoming meetings. The County 
Board received information regarding submission of Committee reports  
 
Time was given for Supervisor’s reports regarding outside meetings attended.  
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received information regarding the hiring of Assistant Corporation Counsel. 
County Board members were asked for feedback regarding laptops and use of laptops. County 
Board received information regarding meetings attended by the Administrator. County Board 
received updates on the potential Greenwhey purchase by Village of Turtle Lake. Administrator 
Osborne informed the County Board that a code of ethics/code of conduct will be established 
for Board of Adjustment members. 
 
Administrator Osborne announced the appointments of Mark Kopp to the regular seat of Board 
of Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2019 and J. Gary Lilyquist to second alternate seat 
of Board of Adjustment for the term ending November 30, 2021. Chairman Johansen called for 
a motion to confirm said appointments.  
Motion (Luke/Larsen) to confirm appointment of Mark Kopp to regular seat of Board of 
Adjustment. Supervisor Nelson noted for the record that he would not vote on the confirmation 
of appointments due to his business and subsequent transactions with the Board of 



3 
 

Adjustment. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to confirm said 
appointment. Motion to confirm appointment of Mark Kopp to the regular seat of Board of 
Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2019 carried by majority voice vote with Supervisor 
Nelson abstaining from voting.  
 
Motion (Jepsen/Bonneprise) to confirm appointment of J. Gary Lilyquist to second alternate 
seat of Board of Adjustment. Supervisor Nelson noted for the record that he would not vote on 
the confirmation due to his business and subsequent transactions with the Board of 
Adjustment. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to confirm said 
appointment. Motion to confirm appointment of J. Gary Lilyquist to second alternate seat of 
Board of Adjustment for the term ending November 30, 2021 carried by majority voice vote 
with Supervisor Nelson abstaining from voting.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 18‐19:  Resolution to Adopt the Polk 
County Plan for Library Service 2019‐2024.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 18‐19.  
Motion (Nelson/Prichard) to adopt Resolution No. 18‐19. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 18‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 18‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 18‐19:  Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Plan for Library Service 2019‐2024 
adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 11‐19:  Resolution in Support of a 
Comprehensive Response to Methamphetamine and Opioid Addiction 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 11‐19.  
 
Motion (Olson/Nelson) to adopt Resolution No. 11‐19.  
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisor Bonneprise and Supervisor Luke to provide a report 
regarding committee consideration of the resolution from Health & Human Services Board and 
Public Safety and Highway Committee. 
Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to amend Resolution No. 11‐19 by striking paragraph that reads:  
“Now therefore, be it resolved, that the Polk County Board of Supervisors urge the Polk County 
District Attorney and Polk County Judicial system to become more pro‐active in not only the 
treatment of individuals on meth and opioids, but also in the swift and certain prosecution and 
sentencing of individuals found to be in the sale and or distribution of these illegal drugs.” 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said amendment. Motion to amend carried by 
majority voice vote with one dissenting.  
Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 11‐19 as 
amended. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 11‐19 as amended carried by roll call vote with 14 voting for 
(Supervisor Masters absent) and none voting against. Resolution No. 11‐19:  Resolution in 
Support of a Comprehensive Response to Methamphetamine and Opioid Addiction adopted as 
amended. 
 



4 
 

Chairman Johansen called for a recess at 7:58 p.m. Chairman Johansen called the Board back 
into legislative session at 8:05 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 17‐19:  Resolution to Enact Amended 
Polk County Stormwater and Erosion Control Ordinance  
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 17‐19.  
 
Motion (Route/LaBlanc) to adopt Resolution No. 17‐19.   
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisor O’Connell to provide information regarding the 
resolution to the County Board.  
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 17‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.    Resolution No. 17‐
19:  Resolution to Enact Amended Polk County Stormwater and Erosion Control Ordinance  
 adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Ordinance No. 05‐19:  Stormwater and Erosion Control 
Ordinance.  
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 05‐19.  
 
Motion (Route/LaBlanc) to adopt Ordinance No. 05‐19.  Chairman Johansen declared motion 
and second would be stricken, as Resolution No. 17‐19 incorporated the amended Stormwater 
and Erosion Control Ordinance, so Ordinance No. 05‐19 is adopted.     Ordinance 05‐19:  
Stormwater and Erosion Control Ordinance incorporated and adopted in conjunction with 
Resolution No. 17‐19. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor. Resolution No. 20‐19:  Resolution to Urge a Joint 
Planning Process Between Polk and Burnett County for the Gandy Dancer Trail Formerly the Soo 
Line Rail Bed. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 20‐19.  
 
Motion (Bonneprise/Jepsen) to adopt Resolution No. 20‐19.   
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisor Olson to provide information regarding the 
resolution to the County Board.  
 
Motion (O’Connell/Olson) to amend Resolution No. 20‐19 to change title on line one striking 
the word “Urge” replacing with “Invite”;  
On Line 21 add: “and to have discussions, those discussions will take place between staff and 
elected officials from both counties”. 
 
Line 24: strike “urge” and replace with the word “invite”  
And renumber resolution accordingly. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said amendment. Motion to amend Resolution 
No. 20‐19 as stated carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 



5 
 

Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 20‐19 as 
amended.  
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 20‐19 as amended carried by majority voice vote with one 
dissenting.  Resolution No. 20‐19:  Resolution to Invite a Joint Planning Process Between Polk 
and Burnett County for the Gandy Dancer Trail Formerly the Soo Line Rail Bed adopted as 
amended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 21‐19: Resolution to Repeal and Recreate 
Article 3.1. of the Polk County Board of Supervisors Rules of Order Ordinance – Concerning the 
Processing of Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 21‐19.  
Motion (Nelson/LaBlanc) to adopt Resolution No. 21‐19. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne to provide information to the Board 
regarding the resolution.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 21‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 21‐19 carried by roll call vote with 14 Supervisors voting for 
adoption (Supervisor Masters absent).  
Resolution No. 21‐19:  Resolution to Repeal and Recreate Article 3.1. of the Polk County Board 
of Supervisors Rules of Order Ordinance – Concerning the Processing of Proposed Resolutions 
and Ordinances adopted.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Demulling/Bonneprise) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 8:33 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 





 
                                         POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 

WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  
 

                                     * AMENDED* Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 
Tuesday, April 16, 2019 

Regular Business Meeting, 6:00 p.m.   
Open Session 

Amendments: 
1Matters Added or Revised by Initial Amended Notice of Meeting 

 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Time of Reflection 
6. Approval of Agenda  
7. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from March 19, 2019  
County Board Meeting 

b. Resolution No. 19‐19: Resolution to Approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment for 
the Town of St Croix Falls 

8. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
9. Justice System Update – Judge Anderson 
10. Polk County Library Planning Committee Presentation Regarding Polk County Plan of 

Library Service 2019‐2024 
11. County Board Chair Report 

a. Supervisor’s Reports from Outside Committee Meetings Attended 
12. Administrator’s Report, Nick Osborne 

a.   Administrator’s Announcements 
13. 1Confirmation of Administrator’s Appointments  

a. Confirmation of Appointment of Mark Kopp to regular seat of Board of 
Adjustment for term ending May 31, 2019 

b. Confirmation of Appointment of J. Gary Lilyquist to second alternate seat of 
Board of Adjustment for term ending November 30, 2021 

14. Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances – Offered by Committee for Direct Action 
Pursuant to Rule 3.1.a.  
 
On Report and Request of Public Safety & Highway Committee and Health & Human 
Services Board  



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    2 
 

a. Resolution No. 11‐19: Resolution in Support of a Comprehensive Response to 
Methamphetamine and Opioid Addiction 

 
On Report and Request of Environmental Services Committee       
 
b. Resolution No. 17‐19:  Resolution to Enact Amended Polk County Stormwater 

and Erosion Control Ordinance 
c. Ordinance No. 05‐19:  Stormwater and Erosion Control Ordinance 
d. Resolution No. 20‐19:  Resolution to Urge a Joint Planning Process Between Polk 

and Burnett County for the Gandy Dancer Trail Formerly the Soo Line Rail Bed 
On Report and Request of Executive Committee 
 
e. Resolution No. 21‐19: Resolution to Repeal and Recreate Article 3.1. of the Polk 

County Board of Supervisors Rules of Order Ordinance – Concerning the 
Processing of Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances 

  On Report and Request of General Government Committee 
 
f. Resolution No. 18‐19:  Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Plan for Library 

Service 2019‐2024 
15. Supervisors Announcements  
16. Adjourn 

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, March 19, 2019  

 
Chairman Johansen called the March 19, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (March 8, 2019), and published in a 
legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of March 11, 
2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on March 8, 2019 copies of such 
notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance with 
Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
The County Clerk stated that the First Amended Agenda was posted in the Government Center, 
posted on the County website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the 
supervisors and media via email on March 11, 2019.  
The County Clerk stated that the second Amended Agenda was posted in the Government 
Center, posted on the County website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the 
supervisors and media via email on March 13, 2019.  
 
The County Board received verbal opinion of Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice and the amended agendas, posted and published as described by the 
Clerk satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Fourteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused was 
Supervisor Jepsen.   
 
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Amended Agenda as 
published. Motion (Luke/Larsen) to adopt the Agenda as Amended. Supervisor Nelson 
requested that Agenda Item #12 Confirmation of Administrators Appointments be moved to 
after Agenda Item #15 on the agenda. Upon consensus of the Board, Chairman Johansen 



2 
 

declared the agenda order would be revised as requested. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt the Amended Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Masters/Demulling) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda:  Approval of the Agenda Conforming to Notice of 
Meeting and Agenda Issued March 8, 2019, Minutes from February 19, 2019 County Board 
session adopted as published, and confirmation of DNR Emergency Fire Wardens for Polk 
County for 2019 as follows:  
Sterling Town: Jean Smith and Mike Stoddard and Clam Falls Town: Patty and Ron Fredericks. 
 
Time was given for public comment. Public comment was received by County Board. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Dave Dahlberg from Northwestern Wisconsin Electric to 
present proposal to the County Board regarding transferring ownership of the Clam Falls Dam 
to Polk County. The County Board received information regarding Clam Falls Dam history and 
the three step decision process regarding transfer of ownership.  
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Judge Anderson from Polk County Circuit Court Branch Two to 
present information to the County Board regarding “In a New Light” program sponsored by 
Northwest Passage. Seventy pieces of donated artwork/photographs taken by students of 
Northwest Passage have been put up on the Justice Center walls presenting a more welcoming 
atmosphere. The County Board received information from Angela Frederickson, Clinical 
Director at Northwest Passage regarding the history and programs at Northwest Passage. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a five minute recess at 6:45 p.m. Chairman Johansen declared the 
Board back in legislative session at 6:51 p.m.  
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report. The County Board received 
information and updates regarding meetings attended and upcoming meetings. The County 
Board received an introduction to County Administrator Nick Osborne. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received information on meetings attended.  The Board received an update 
regarding the Lime Quarry analysis. Completion of the Lime Quarry analysis by Clifton Allen 
Larson is expected by May 21st and information will be presented to County Board. Polk 
County’s budget process will remain much the same as previous years. Governor’s budget may 
cause uncertainty in County budget process as final Governor’s budget will likely not be passed 
by July 1st. County Board received handout regarding crisis in human services with many 
counties experiencing a marked increase in child placements due to drug use. 2018 Polk County 
budget will likely see a deficit when books are closed in May due to increased child placements. 
County Board received an update regarding the tax delinquent property known as the 
Greenway property, more information coming at a later meeting. 



3 
 

 
Administrator Osborne called on Deputy Administrator Jerrick to provide information regarding 
employment status and job vacancies. Polk County is experiencing employee turnover of 15 to 
16 percent. Position vacancies in process include Information Technology Director, Department 
of Children and Families Director, CJCC Coordinator and Seasonal Positions. Positions pending 
or on hold include the Land Information Director and Assistant Corporation Counsel. 
 
Chairman Johansen declared the Board would convene as Committee of the Whole. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to convene as Committee of the Whole at 7:35 p.m.  
Motion (Masters/LaBlanc) to convene as Committee of the Whole. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to convene as Committee of the Whole carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisor Arcand to provide information regarding 
reconsideration of Resolution No. 93‐18 to appropriate sufficient funding for the analysis of the 
Fairgrounds. General Government Committee recommendation to amend the amount on line 
50 of Resolution No. 93‐18 from $15,000 to $35,000 was made to provide funding for a 
comprehensive analysis of fairgrounds. Cedar Corp and Barrientos provided proposals for a 
comprehensive analysis of entire fairgrounds. 
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion and possible recommendations regarding 
proposed changes to the format of resolutions in the Polk County Board Rules of Order 
Ordinance.  Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Osborne to address the Committee 
of the Whole regarding proposed changes to the format of resolutions.  
Changes proposed by Administrator Osborne include:  

 changing “reviewed by” on the resolution/ordinance to a more general statement such 
as “County Administrator’s notes”  

 Under fiscal impact: change “completed by administrator” to “completed by finance 
department”  

 Add an executive summary to resolutions/ordinances to provide description of the 
resolution/ordinance. 

 
Supervisor Prichard noted that committee reports have not been submitted with resolutions as 
per the Rules of Order. 
 
Motion (Arcand/Masters) to have Administrator Osborne move forward with changes to 
resolution format by presenting an amendment ordinance or resolution. Chairman Johansen 
called for a voice vote on said motion.  
Motion to have Administrator Osborne move forward with changes to resolution format 
carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion and possible recommendations regarding 
proposed amendments to the Polk County Board Rules of Order Ordinance in regard to Board 
of Adjustment nominations by the Environmental Services Committee. Chairman Johansen 



4 
 

called on Supervisor O’Connell to provide information to the Board regarding having the 
Environmental Services Committee provide recommendations as to nomination of Board of 
Adjustment members.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and 
reconvene in legislative session of the Board.  Motion (Arcand/Bonneprise) to adjourn 
Committee of the Whole session. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Committee of the Whole adjourned 8:09 p.m. 
 
The County Board addressed the confirmation of Board of Adjustment Committee members. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to confirm said appointments.  
Appointments of Mark Kopp to the Board of Adjustment Committee for the term ending May 
31, 2019 and J. Gary Lilyquist as 2nd Alternate to the Board of Adjustment Committee for the 
term ending November 30, 2021 were made by Interim Administrator Fuge.  
 
Motion (Bonneprise/Larsen) to refer the appointments of Kopp and Lilyquist to the Board of 
Adjustment back to Environmental Services Committee April meeting and ask for 
recommendation from the Committee regarding said appointments to the Board of 
Adjustment.  
Point of order by Supervisor Arcand reminding Supervisors to address the Chair.  
 
Motion (Nelson/Bonneprise) to postpone the confirmation of the Administrator’s 
appointments of Board of Adjustment until Environmental Services Committee has a 
nomination process in place. Supervisor Bonneprise requested to withdraw his previous 
motion, but Chairman Johansen declared that since motion was seconded, the Board would 
have to vote in order to withdraw the motion.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to 
allow withdrawal of previous Bonneprise/Larsen motion (to refer appointments back to 
Environmental Services Committee and ask for recommendation regarding the appointments). 
Motion to allow withdrawal of previous Bonneprise/Larsen motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote.   
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to postpone the confirmation of the 
Administrator’s appointments of Board of Adjustment until Environmental Services Committee 
has a nomination process in place. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a recess at 8:25 p.m.  Chairman Johansen called the County Board 
back into legislative session 8:35 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor reconsideration of Resolution No. 93‐18: Resolution 
Clarifying the Fairground Grandstand Capital Improvement Process to appropriate sufficient 
funding for the comprehensive analysis of the Fairgrounds.   
Motion (Masters/Bonneprise) to reconsider Resolution No. 93‐18 and amend amount on line 
50 from $15,000 to $35,000.  Chairman Johansen declared the Motion out of order as motion 
must first be made to reconsider Resolution No. 93‐18.  
 



5 
 

Motion (Arcand/Masters) to reconsider Resolution No. 93‐18. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on said motion. Motion to reconsider Resolution No. 93‐18 carried by unanimous 
voice vote.  
Motion (Arcand/Route) to amend Resolution No. 93‐18 changing amount on line 50 from 
$15,000 to $35,000 and to amend fiscal impact statement amount from $15,000 to $35,000. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion.  
Motion to amend Resolution No. 93‐18 to change amount on line 50 and fiscal impact 
statement amount from $15,000 to $35,000 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Reconsideration of Resolution No. 93‐18: Resolution Clarifying the Fairground Grandstand 
Capital Improvement Process revised/reconsidered/adopted as amended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to bring Resolution No. 16‐19 to the floor for direct 
action.  
Motion (Masters/Bonneprise) to bring Resolution No. 16‐19 to the floor for direct action.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by majority voice 
vote to bring Resolution No. 16‐19 to the floor for action. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 16‐19:  Resolution to Designate the 
Justice Center Hallway as a Compassionate Hallway.  
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 16‐19.  
 
Motion (Masters/LaBlanc) to adopt Resolution No. 16‐19.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 16‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.    
Resolution No. 16‐19:  Resolution to Designate the Justice Center Hallway as a Compassionate 
Hallway adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Ordinance No. 01‐19:  To Repeal and Recreate Article 
3.1.a. of the Polk County Board of Supervisors Rules of Order Ordinance – Concerning the 
Sponsorship and Processing of Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 01‐19.  
 
Motion (Olson/Route) to adopt Ordinance No. 01‐19.  Chairman Johansen provided 
information to the Board from the Executive Committee meeting regarding the Ordinance. 
Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote on motion to adopt. Motion to adopt Ordinance 
01‐19 carried by roll call vote with 12 voting yes, 2 voting no (Voting no:  Supervisors Prichard 
and Larsen. Absent was Supervisor Jepsen).    Ordinance 01‐19:  To Repeal and Recreate Article 
3.1.a. of the Polk County Board of Supervisors Rules of Order Ordinance – Concerning the 
Sponsorship and Processing of Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Ordinance No. 15‐19:  Polk County Uniform Rural 
Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance (formerly Ordinance No. 48‐18). 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 15‐19.  
 
Motion (Bonneprise/Route) to adopt Ordinance 15‐19.   



6 
 

Chairman Johansen called upon Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator to provide an update and 
examples regarding addressing and Ordinance No. 15‐19 to the County Board. Supervisor Luke 
provided information regarding the Ordinance from the Public Safety & Highway Committee 
meeting.  
Motion (Luke/Route) to amend Ordinance No. 15‐19 striking lines 40‐44 under section 1.3A and 
re‐number lines accordingly. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to amend Ordinance No. 15‐
19 by striking lines 40‐44 under Section 1.3A carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Motion (Nelson/Bonneprise) to further amend Ordinance No. 15‐19 under Section 3.1.4h.1. to 
read as follows:   
“If such address change affects an existing named road, the road name may shall be kept on 
the road sign at the towns discretion consistent with Section 4.f.(1) but the individual rural 
address signs shall be replaced to reflect the new address conforming with the grid system”. 
 Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion to further amend Ordinance No. 15‐
19.  
Motion to further amend Ordinance No. 15‐19 as stated carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Ordinance No. 15‐19 as further amended.  
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 15‐19 as further amended carried by majority voice vote with 
one dissenting.    Ordinance No. 15‐19:  Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road 
Numbering Ordinance adopted as amended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Ordinance No. 06‐19:  Ordinance to Enact Amended Polk 
County Chapter 18 Subdivision Ordinance. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 06‐19.  
 
Motion (Olson/O’Connell) to adopt Ordinance No. 06‐19.  Chairman Johansen called upon 
Zoning Administrator Kjeseth to provide information regarding Ordinance No. 06‐19 to the 
Board. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 06‐19.  
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 06‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.    Ordinance No.06‐19:  
Ordinance to Enact Amended Polk County Chapter 18 Subdivision Ordinance adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Ordinance No. 07‐19:  Ordinance to Enact Amended Polk 
County Comprehensive Land Use Ordinance. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 07‐19.  
 
Motion (Route/Luke) to adopt Ordinance No. 07‐19.  Chairman Johansen called upon 
Supervisor O’Connell and Zoning Administrator Kjeseth to provide information regarding 
Ordinance No. 07‐19 to the Board. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to 
adopt Ordinance No. 07‐19. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 07‐19 carried by unanimous voice 
vote.    Ordinance No. 07‐19:  Ordinance to Enact Amended Polk County Comprehensive Land 
Use Ordinance adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Ordinance No. 08‐19:  Ordinance to Enact Amended Polk 
County Shoreland Protection Zoning Ordinance. 



7 
 

Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 08‐19. Chairman Johansen 
called upon Zoning Administrator to provide information regarding amendments to Ordinance 
No. 08‐19.   
 
Motion (Olson/O’Connell) to adopt Ordinance No. 08‐19.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 08‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote 
Ordinance No. 08‐19:  Ordinance to Enact Amended Polk County Shoreland Protection Zoning 
Ordinance adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 14‐19:  Resolution Designating the Week 
of April 8 Through April 12, 2019 as “Work Zone Awareness Week” in Polk County. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 14‐19.  
Motion (Demulling/Bonneprise) to adopt Resolution No. 14‐19. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisor Bonneprise to provide information to the Board 
regarding the resolution.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 14‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 14‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 14‐19:  Resolution Designating the Week of April 8 Through April 12, 2019 as 
“Work Zone Awareness Week” in Polk County adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 
Motion (Masters/Demulling) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis 
noticed on the amended agenda.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to convene in closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 

** Closed Session 9:51 p.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 

Chairman Johansen asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors 
Brad Olson, Doug Route, Tracy LaBlanc, Brian Masters, Chris Nelson, Michael Prichard, Jim 
Edgell, Kim O’Connell, Jay Luke, Joe Demulling, Michael Larsen, Russ Arcand, John Bonneprise 
and Chairman Johansen.  Also present were, Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Malia Malone, 
Corporation Counsel; and Andrea Jerrick, Deputy Administrator/Employee Relations Director.  
 
*Reconvened in Open session: 10:16 p.m.   
 
Chair Johansen called for a motion in regard to setting the 90 day performance objectives for 
the County Administrator.  
 
Motion (Nelson/Masters) to accept performance objectives as set forth/discussed in closed 
session. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to accept 90 day 
performance objectives as set forth in closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 



8 
 

Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Luke/Bonneprise) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 10:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 


































































































































































































































	Minutes 4-16-19
	20190423091313474
	County Board Agenda 4-16-19 Amended
	Minutes 3-19-19
	Ord2019 05-19 Stormwater and Erosion Control Ordinance
	Res2019 19-19 Approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment for Town of SCF
	Res2019 18-19 To Adopt the Polk County Plan for Library Service 2019-2024
	Res2019 11-19 Comprehensive Response to Meth & Opioid Addiction
	Res2019 17-19 Enact Amended Stormwater & Erosion Control Ordinance
	Res2019 20-19 Invite Planning Process for Gandy Dancer Trail
	Res2019 21-19 Repeal & Recreate Rules of Order Ordinance Processing of Res & Ord

